
   

 
Rent Stabilization Board 

 

RENT STABILIZATION BOARD 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, July 21, 2022 
7:00 p.m. 

 
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)(3), City Council Resolution 70,030-N.S., and City of 
Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board (Rent Board) Resolution 21-29, this meeting of the Rent Board will be 
conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be advised that pursuant to 
the Resolutions and the findings contained therein that the spread of COVID-19 continues to be a threat to the 
public health and that holding meetings of City legislative bodies in person would present imminent risks to 
the health and safety of the public and members of legislative bodies. Therefore, there will not be a physical 
meeting location available. 
 
To access this meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device by clicking on this 
URL: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81553526289?pwd=SjJQbVVRWG5RMFNzdy9qdTFzLy91UT09. If you do 
not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop-down menu and click on "Rename" to 
rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “Raise Hand” icon by rolling over the bottom 
of the screen. 
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-6833 and enter Meeting ID: 815 5352 6289 and Passcode: 247686. If you 
wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the 
Chair. 
 
To submit an e-mail comment, send it to amueller@cityofberkeley.info with the Subject line in this format: 
“RENT BOARD MEETING PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM.” Please observe a 150-word limit. Written 
comments will be entered into the public record.  Email comments must be submitted to the email address 
above by 5:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting in order to be included.  
 
Please be mindful that this meeting will be recorded, and all other rules of procedure and decorum will apply 
for Rent Board meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 
 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Government Code Section 54953, 54956, and all current 
state and local requirements allowing public participation in meetings of legislative bodies. Any member of 
the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to DéSeana Williams, 
Executive Director, at (510) 981-7368. The Rent Board may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda.

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81553526289?pwd=SjJQbVVRWG5RMFNzdy9qdTFzLy91UT09
mailto:amueller@cityofberkeley.info


   

2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT)  TDD: (510) 981-6903  FAX: (510) 981-4940 
EMAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info   WEB: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent 

RENT STABILIZATION BOARD 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, July 21, 2022 
7:00 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

*Times allotted for each item are approximate and may be changed at the Board’s discretion 
during the course of this meeting. 
 

1. Roll call – 1 min.* 
 

2. Land Acknowledgment Statement:  The Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board recognizes 
that the rental housing units we regulate are built on the territory of xučyun (Huchiun-
(Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the Chochenyo (Cho-chen-yo)-
speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants of the sovereign 
Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to be of great importance 
to all of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. As we begin our 
meeting tonight, we acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of Berkeley, the 
documented 5,000-year history of a vibrant community at the West Berkeley 
Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the East Bay.  We 
recognize that Berkeley’s landlords and tenants have and continue to benefit from the use 
and occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation in 
1878 and since the Rent Stabilization Board’s creation in 1980. As stewards of the laws 
regulating rental housing, it is not only vital that we recognize the history of this land, but 
also recognize that the Ohlone people are present members of Berkeley and other East 
Bay communities today. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda – 1 min.* 
 

4. Introduction of recently-hired Rent Board staff – 5 min.* 
 

5. Public Comment – 2 min. per speaker for non-agendized items* 
 

6. Public Comment – 2 min. per speaker for items on the agenda* 
 

7. APPEAL – 7:30 p.m.** 
**This appeal will not be heard before 7:30 p.m. but may be heard any time thereafter. 
 
Case No. E-99 (1146-1160 Hearst Avenue) 
 
Appellant landlord (“landlord”) filed an appeal of a hearing decision denying exemption 
of registration requirements under Measure MM for 26 rental units located on 3 parcels, 
1146-50 Hearst Ave., 1154-56 Hearst Ave., and 1160 Hearts Ave (“property”). On 
appeal, the landlord reiterates his claim that the property is wholly exempt, in perpetuity, 
from the Rent Ordinance pursuant to a settlement agreement between the landlord and the 

mailto:rent@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/rent


   
July 21, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting agenda 
Page 3 
 

 

Rent Stabilization Board (“Board”). The landlord’s petition and appeal fail to establish 
that the settlement agreement issues the property a blanket exemption to the Rent 
Ordinance, and otherwise fails to provide any other reason for exemption from Measure 
MM registration obligations. Therefore, the Hearing Examiner’s decision should be 
affirmed. 
 

8. CONSENT ITEMS – 1 min.* 
 

a. Approval of the June 16, 2022 regular meeting minutes 
 
b. Proposal to approve staff recommendations on the following requests for waivers 

of late registration penalties (Executive Director/Registration Unit Manager) 
 
Ministerial Waivers 
Waiver No. Property Address 

  66 MENLO 
2116 ROOSEVELT 
2398 BANCROFT WAY 
1411 SPRUCE 
2958 HILLEGASS 
2313 6TH STREET 
1437 VIRGINIA 
1767 EUCLID #6 
2022 EMERSON 
2530 DWIGHT 
2112 MCKINLEY #C 
1620 MILVIA ST 
1717 BLAKE 
1641 ALLSTON WAY 
2711 FOREST AVE 
1323 SANTA FE 
2422 BONAR 
1221 CURTIS 
1523 PRINCE ST 
1921 HARMON 
367 VASSAR 
2326 LE CONTE 
2215 MARIN AVE 
3205 CALIFORNIA ST 
1659 JULIA 
2325 ROOSEVELT 
2218 ASHBY AVE 
1916 CEDAR 
1614 FRANCISCO 
2335 RUSSELL 



   
July 21, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting agenda 
Page 4 
 

 

2636 WARRING ST 
2724 GARBER 
2711 CALIFORNIA 
1919A RUSSELL 
2734 MILVIA 
1009 KEITH 
2021 HEARST 
 

 Discretionary Waivers 
Waiver No. Property Address 
 
W5031  3025 DEAKIN 
W5032  2112 VIRGINIA 
W5033  2721 CHANNING 
W5034  1240 ORDWAY 
W5035  1203 SHATTUCK #B 
W5036  1655 BELVEDERE 
W5037  1204 EVELYN AVE 
W5038  2383 VIRGINIA ST 
W5039  2204 MCGEE 
W5040  2644 DWIGHT 
W5041  1612 PARKER 
W5042  1636 MLK JR WAY 
W5043  1780 SPRUCE 
W5044  2501 HILGARD 
W5045  2733, 2727 & 2729 STUART 
W5046  1602 ASHBY 
W5047  1449 CEDAR 
W5048  1350 ACTON 
 

9. ACTION ITEMS 
from Board Members, Committees, Executive Director or Staff 
 
Public comment will also be heard prior to the Board’s vote on each action item 
listed below – 1 min. per speaker. 
 

a. Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-21 to establish a COVID-19 and one-
time Administrative Correction Cycle amnesty period of 90 days for fully covered 
and Measure MM units to automatically waive penalties associated with late 
payment of Registration Fees for those landlords that were not able to pay the fees 
due to financial hardship associated with COVID-19 or the requirement of an 
administrative correction (Budget & Personnel Committee and Executive 
Director) – 15 min.* 
 



   
July 21, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting agenda 
Page 5 
 

 

b. Discussion and possible action to amend the Board’s 2022 Regular Meeting 
Schedule by canceling the regular meeting scheduled for August 18, 2022 (Chair 
Simon-Weisberg) – 5 min.* 
 

10. INFORMATION, ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ARTICLES/MEDIA 
from Board Members, Committees, Executive Director or Staff 
 
NOTE:  The Board may vote to move Information Items to the Action calendar. 
 

a. Update on the Tenant Survey project – Verbal (Executive Director) – 3 min.* 
 

b. 2022-2023 Year Over Year Registration Fee Collection Comparison report 
(Executive Director/Registration Unit Manager) – 5 min.* 
 

c. Updated Commissioner attendance at Board and Committee meetings through the 
2nd quarter of 2022  (Board Secretary) – 1 min.* 
 

d. Updated Appendix B of Rent Board Regulations, Chapter 12  (Executive 
Director) – 1 min.*  
 

e. Updated Appendix C of Rent Board Regulations, Chapter 12  (Executive 
Director) – 1 min.* 
 

f. June 2022 report by the Tech, Bias, and Housing Initiative titled, “Sold to the 
Highest Bidder – How Tech is Cashing in on the American Dream”  (Chair 
Simon-Weisberg) – 1 min.* 
  

g. July 13, 2022 California Department of Justice Division of Law Enforcement  
Information Bulletin: “Protecting Tenants Against Unlawful Lockouts and Other 
“Self-Help Evictions” (Chair Simon-Weisberg) – 1 min.* 
 

h. Date to submit agenda topics/items for September’s regular Rent Board meeting: 
Friday, September 2nd at 5:00 p.m.  NOTE: This is a hard deadline and will be 
enforced. 
 

11. COMMITTEE/BOARD MEETING UPDATES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

a. Budget and Personnel Committee (Commissioner Chang, Chair) – 5 min.* 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Monday, Sept. 12th at 5:30 p.m. 
 
July 12th agenda 
 

b. Eviction/Section 8/Foreclosure Committee (Commissioner Mendonca, Chair) – 5 
min.* 



   
July 21, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting agenda 
Page 6 
 

 

Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Thursday, July 28th at 5:30 p.m. 
 

c. Legislation, IRA/AGA & Registration Committee (LIRA Committee) 
(Commissioner Kelley, Chair) – 5 min.* 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  TBA 
 

d. Outreach Committee (Commissioner Laverde, Chair) – 5 min.* 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Wednesday, August 10th at 5:30 p.m. 
 
July 20th agenda  
 

e. 2 x 2 Committee on Housing: Rent Board/Berkeley Unified School District (Chair 
TBA) – 3 min.* 
Regularly-scheduled meeting date:  TBA 
 

f. 4 x 4 Joint Task Force Committee on Housing: City Council/Rent Board – 5 
min.* 
(Mayor Arreguín and Chair Simon-Weisberg, Committee Co-Chairs) 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Wednesday, Sept. 28th at 3:00 p.m. 
 
July 12th agenda packet 
 

g. Ad Hoc Committee on Rent Board Technology Issues (Commissioner Selawsky, 
Chair) – 3 min.* 
Next meeting date:  TBA 
 

h. Ad Hoc Committee on the Status of Virtual Meetings (Chair TBA) – 3 min.* 
Next meeting date:  TBA 
 

i. Updates and Announcements – 3 min.* 
 

j. Discussion of items for possible placement on future agenda – 5 min.* 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
COMMUNICATIONS DISCLAIMER: 
 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and 
will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the 
City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact 
information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, 
commission or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-
mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or 
committee. If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please 



   
July 21, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting agenda 
Page 7 
 

 

do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the 
relevant board, commission or committee for further information. 



Rent Stabilization Board 

RENT STABILIZATION BOARD 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, June 16, 2022 
7:00 p.m. 

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)(3), City Council Resolution 70,030-N.S., and City of 
Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board (Rent Board) Resolution 21-29, this meeting of the Rent Board will be 
conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be advised that pursuant to 
the Resolutions and the findings contained therein that the spread of COVID-19 continues to be a threat to the 
public health and that holding meetings of City legislative bodies in person would present imminent risks to 
the health and safety of the public and members of legislative bodies. Therefore, there will not be a physical 
meeting location available. 

To access this meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device by clicking on this 
URL: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89678068865?pwd=Tm9lc1pXWGJ3OXU3QjFxZmUxNlRzdz09. If you do 
not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop-down menu and click on "Rename" to 
rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “Raise Hand” icon by rolling over the bottom 
of the screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-6833 and enter Meeting ID: 896 7806 8865 and Passcode: 137020. If you 
wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the 
Chair. 

To submit an e-mail comment, send it to amueller@cityofberkeley.info with the Subject line in this format: 
“RENT BOARD MEETING PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM.” Please observe a 150-word limit. Written 
comments will be entered into the public record.  Email comments must be submitted to the email address 
above by 5:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting in order to be included.  

Please be mindful that this meeting will be recorded, and all other rules of procedure and decorum will apply 
for Rent Board meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Government Code Section 54953, 54956, and all current 
state and local requirements allowing public participation in meetings of legislative bodies. Any member of 
the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to DéSeana Williams, 
Executive Director, at (510) 981-7368. The Rent Board may take action related to any subject listed on the 
Agenda.

Item 8.a.

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89678068865?pwd=Tm9lc1pXWGJ3OXU3QjFxZmUxNlRzdz09
mailto:amueller@cityofberkeley.info


   

2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT)  TDD: (510) 981-6903  FAX: (510) 981-4940 
EMAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info   WEB: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent 

RENT STABILIZATION BOARD 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, June 16, 2022 
7:00 p.m. 

 
Minutes - Unapproved 

 

1. Roll call – Chair Simon-Weisberg called the meeting to order at 7:03p.m. 
Aimee Muller called roll. 
Commissioners present: Alpert (logged on at 8:12 p.m., logged off at 10:30 p.m.), Chang 
(logged on at 7:11 p.m.), Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, Mendonca, Selawsky, Walker, 
Simon-Weisberg.   
Commissioners Absent: None. 
Staff present: Brown, Bursell, Eberhart, Mueller, Williams. 
 

2. Land Acknowledgment Statement:  The Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board recognizes 
that the rental housing units we regulate are built on the territory of xučyun (Huchiun-
(Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the Chochenyo (Cho-chen-yo)-
speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants of the sovereign 
Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to be of great importance 
to all of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. As we begin our 
meeting tonight, we acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of Berkeley, the 
documented 5,000-year history of a vibrant community at the West Berkeley 
Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the East Bay.  We 
recognize that Berkeley’s landlords and tenants have and continue to benefit from the use 
and occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation in 
1878 and since the Rent Stabilization Board’s creation in 1980. As stewards of the laws 
regulating rental housing, it is not only vital that we recognize the history of this land, but 
also recognize that the Ohlone people are present members of Berkeley and other East 
Bay communities today. 
 
The Land Acknowledgement Statement was played aloud. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 
M/S/C (Selawsky/Kelley) APPROVE THE AGENDA WITH THE FOLLOWING 
CHANGES: MOVE ACTION ITEMS 8.d. AND 8.e. TO THE TOP OF THE ACTION 
CALENDAR.  Roll call vote.  YES: Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, Mendonca, Selawsky, 
Walker, Simon-Weisberg; NO: None; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: Alpert, Chang.  
Carried: 7-0-0-2. 
 

4. Public Comment – non-agendized items.  Omowale Fowles spoke in support of 
preserving space near Ashby BART for the Berkeley Flea Market.   
 

5. Public Comment – items on the agenda.  Sylvia Chapman spoke in support of  the 
Tenant Opportunity to Purchase Act (TOPA).  Omowale Fowles spoke in support of 

mailto:rent@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/rent


   
June 16, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting minutes 
Page 3 
 

 

TOPA.  Krista Gulbransen, Executive Director of the Berkeley Property Owners 
Association (BPOA), spoke of the difficulty of commenting on agenda items with no 
corresponding documents in the packet.  Negeene Mosaed spoke in support of TOPA.  
“Della” spoke in support of TOPA.   
 

6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION:  Update on the campaign to pass the Tenant 
Opportunity to Purchase Act (TOPA) by the Northern California Land Trust 
 
Hewot Shankute and Michael Trujillo of the East Bay Community Law Center (EBCLC), 
and Sarah Scruggs of the Northern California Land Trust presented and took feedback 
from the Board.  Chair Simon-Weisberg announced she would be sending a letter to 
Council in support of TOPA.   
 

7. CONSENT ITEMS  
 

a. Approval of the May 19, 2022 regular meeting minutes 
 
b. Proposal to approve staff recommendations on the following requests for waivers 

of late registration penalties (Executive Director/Registration Unit staff) 
 
Ministerial Waivers 
Waiver No. Property Address 
 
N/A  2501 HILGARD 
N/A  1900 BERRYMAN 
N/A  1628 TYLER 
N/A  1526 JULIA 
N/A  932 DELAWARE 
N/A  2601 COLLEGE 
N/A  1408 MILVIA 
N/A  1760 UNIVERSITY 
N/A  45 ALTA 
N/A  2612 HILLEGASS 
 
Discretionary Waivers 
Waiver No. Property Address 
 
W5025  1313 CURTIS 
W5026  2270 SHATTUCK 
W5027  818 DELAWARE 
W5028  2665 SHASTA 
W5029  2914 ADELINE 
W5030  2919 ACTON 
 
 



   
June 16, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting minutes 
Page 4 
 

 

M/S/C (Laverde/Mendonca) APPROVE ALL CONSENT ITEMS AS WRITTEN.  
Roll call vote.  YES: Chang, Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, Mendonca, Selawsky, 
Walker, Simon-Weisberg; NO: None; Abstain: None; ABSENT: Alpert.   
Carried: 8-0-0-1. 
 

8. ACTION ITEMS 
from Board Members, Committees, Executive Director or Staff 
 
Public comment on action items:  Krista Gulbransen, Executive Director of the BPOA, 
thanked Anne Omura, Executive Director of the Eviction Defense Center (EDC), for her 
thoughtful work on obtaining rent relief for tenants and small property owners during the 
pandemic.  “Della” conveyed her appreciation for the information conveyed this evening.  
Sylvia Chapman thanked EDC and EBCLC for their proactive work on TOPA, anti-
displacement, and preserving affordable housing.  Omowale Fowles commented on the 
Board stipend adjustment item. 
 
Items 8.d. and 8.e. were heard at the start of the action calendar and voted on together.  
Items 8.f., 8.g., 8.h., and 8.i. were heard and voted on together.   
 

a. Discussion and possible action to adopt Resolution 22-12 revising Resolution 14-
16 to increase Commissioners’ monthly stipend and to adjust this stipend on 
January 1 of each year beginning in 2023 in an amount based on the Consumer 
Price Index (Budget & Personnel Committee and Executive Director) 
 
M/S/C (Kelley/Laverde) INCREASE THE BOARD’S MONTHLY STIPEND 
FROM $500 TO $1,384.10 BEGINNING IN JULY 2022.  Roll call vote.  YES: 
Chang, Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, Mendonca, Walker, Selawsky, Simon-
Weisberg; NO: Alpert; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: None.  Carried: 8-1-0-0. 
 

b. Discussion and possible action to adopt Resolution 22-12 revising Resolution 14-
16 to include a technology stipend for Commissioners every four years beginning 
July 1, 2022 and to adjust this stipend on a four-year cycle in an amount based on 
the Consumer Price Index (Budget & Personnel Committee and Executive 
Director) 
 
M/S/C (Chang/Simon-Weisberg) ADOPT RESOLUTION 22-12 AS AMENDED 
BY AN EARLIER VOTE OF THE BOARD TO REVISE THE BOARD’S 
MONTHLY STIPEND AMOUNT FROM $500 TO $1,384.10 WITH ANNUAL 
CPI INCREASES STARTING ON JANUARY 1, 2023.  Roll call vote.  YES: 
Chang, Johnson, Kelley, Selawsky, Walker, Simon-Weisberg; NO: Alpert; 
ABSTAIN: Laverde, Mendonca; ABSENT: None.  Carried: 6-1-2-0.     
 

c. Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-13 approving the Rent Board’s Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2022-2023 Line-Item Budget, Staffing Model and Maximum 
Expenditure Level, following a presentation by staff (Budget & Personnel 
Committee and Executive Director) 



   
June 16, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting minutes 
Page 5 
 

 

 
Following a presentation by Lief Bursell, the Board took the following action: 
 
M/S/C (Selawsky/Laverde) ADOPT RESOLUTION 22-13 AS WRITTEN.  Roll 
call vote.  YES: Chang, Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, Mendonca, Walker, Selawsky, 
Simon-Weisberg; NO: None; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: Alpert.   
Carried: 8-0-0-1. 
 

d. Following a presentation by the Eviction Defense Center:  
Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-14 authorizing the Executive Director to 
modify the contract with the Eviction Defense Center by extending the term 
through June 30, 2023, and increasing the contract by an amount not to exceed 
$435,500 for FY 2022-2023 (Eviction/Section 8/Foreclosure Committee and 
Executive Director) – Items 8.d. and 8.e. were heard and voted on together at the 
start of the action calendar. 
 
Following presentations by Anne Omura of EDC and Meghan Gordon of EBCLC, 
the Board took the following action: 
 
M/S/C (Laverde/Mendonca) ADOPT RESOLUTIONS 22-14 AND 22-15 AS 
WRITTEN.  Roll call vote.  YES: Alpert, Chang, Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, 
Mendonca, Walker, Simon-Weisberg; NO: None; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: 
None; RECUSED: Selawsky*.  Carried: 8-0-0-0-1. 
 
*Commissioner Selawsky recused himself because his son works for EDC. 
 

e. Following a presentation by the East Bay Community Law Center: 
Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-15 authorizing the Executive Director to 
modify the contract with the East Bay Community Law Center by extending the 
term through June 30, 2023, and increasing the contract by an amount not to 
exceed $432,500 for FY 2022-2023 (Eviction/Section 8/Foreclosure Committee 
and Executive Director) – Items 8.d. and 8.e. were heard and voted on together 
at the start of the action calendar. See vote under item 8.d.  
 

f. Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-16 authorizing the Executive Director to 
modify the contract with Brian Augusta & Associates for legislative advocacy 
services by extending the term through June 30, 2023, and increasing the contract 
by an amount not to exceed $60,000 for FY 2022-2023 (Executive Director) – 
Items 8.f., 8.g., 8.h., and 8.i. were heard and voted on together. 
 
M/S/C (Johnson/Chang) ADOPT RESOLUTIONS 22-16, 22-17, 22-18, AND 22-
19 AS WRITTEN.  Roll call vote.  YES: Alpert, Chang, Johnson, Kelley, 
Laverde, Mendonca, Walker, Selawsky, Simon-Weisberg; NO: None; ABSTAIN: 
None; ABSENT: None.  Carried: 9-0-0-0. 
 



   
June 16, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting minutes 
Page 6 
 

 

g. Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-17 authorizing the Executive Director to 
modify the contract with Berkeley Community Media to capture and telecast all 
Board meetings by extending the term through June 30, 2023, and increasing the 
contract by an amount not to exceed $22,000 for FY 2022-2023 (Executive 
Director) – Items 8.f., 8.g., 8.h., and 8.i. were heard and voted on together.  See 
vote under item 8.f. 
 

h. Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-18 authorizing the Executive Director to 
modify the contract with QuickCaption, Inc. for remote closed captioning of all 
televised Board meetings and informational webinars by extending the term 
through June 30, 2023, and increasing the contract by an amount not to exceed 
$8,000 for FY 2022-2023 (Executive Director) – Items 8.f., 8.g., 8.h., and 8.i. 
were heard and voted on together.  See vote under item 8.f. 
 

i. Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-19 authorizing the Executive Director to 
increase the purchase order with ACRO Services Corporation for a total amount 
not to exceed $30,000 to allow for full-time temporary support of the Registration 
Unit during the registration period from May 30, 2022, through August 31, 2022 
(Budget & Personnel Committee and Executive Director) – Items 8.f., 8.g., 8.h., 
and 8.i. were heard and voted on together.  See vote under item 8.f. 
 

j. Recommendation to adopt Resolution 22-20 adjusting General Counsel Matt 
Brown’s salary according to the terms of his existing employment agreement 
(Chair Simon-Weisberg & Vice Chair Alpert) 
 
M/S/C (Chang/Kelley) ADOPT RESOLUTION 22-20 AS WRITTEN.  Roll call 
vote.  YES: Chang, Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, Mendonca, Walker, Selawsky, 
Simon-Weisberg; NO: None; ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: Alpert.   
Carried: 8-0-0-1. 
 
After the motion on Resolution 22-20 was made, but before the vote, the 
following was stated for the record: 
 
A motion has been made and seconded regarding the modification of an existing 
employment agreement with Matt Brown, General Counsel of the Berkeley Rent 
Stabilization Board, by adopting Resolution 22-20. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code 54953(c), a summary of compensation must be 
orally reported prior to taking final action.  The proposed modification adjusts 
the General Counsel’s monthly salary of $19,021.58 to $19,592.21 effective 
during the pay cycle beginning in July of 2022 when the salary increase for the 
Staff Attorney III city classification is implemented.  This salary adjustment is 
made pursuant to Paragraph 3 of Mr. Brown’s existing employment agreement, 
which articulates the parties’ intent to maintain his salary at least 15% above that 
of a Staff Attorney III.  All other terms of the employment agreement will remain 
the same.  A copy of the amendment to the employment agreement will be made 



   
June 16, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting minutes 
Page 7 
 

 

available once all the parties have signed the agreement.   
 

9. INFORMATION, ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ARTICLES/MEDIA 
from Board Members, Committees, Executive Director or Staff 
 
THE CHAIR PROPOSED MOVING THE ITEMS BELOW TO THE NEXT 
MEETING WITHOUT OBJECTION.   
 

a. Update on the annual registration process for fully-covered units and Measure 
MM units for FY 2022-2023 – Verbal (Executive Director) 
 

b. April 28, 2022 Owner Move-in Eviction Tracking Report (January 2019 - 
December 2021) (Eviction/Section 8/Foreclosure Committee & Executive 
Director)  
 

c. Rent Board’s participation in the 35th Annual Berkeley Juneteenth Festival on 
Sunday, June 19th from 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. – Verbal (Executive Director) 
 

d. Update on the Rent Board’s presentation at the May 20, 2022 “Rent Stabilization: 
Lessons Learned from Implementing Rent Stabilization Policies” webinar 
(Minneapolis/St. Paul) from  9:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. Pacific Time – Verbal 
(General Counsel) 
 

e. Date to submit agenda topics/items for June’s regular Rent Board meeting: 
Monday, July 11th at 5:00 p.m.  NOTE: This is a hard deadline and will be 
enforced. 
 

10. COMMITTEE/BOARD MEETING UPDATES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
THE CHAIR PROPOSED MOVING THE ITEMS BELOW TO THE NEXT 
MEETING WITHOUT OBJECTION.   
 

a. Budget and Personnel Committee (Commissioner Chang, Chair) 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Monday, Sept. 12th at 5:30 p.m. 
 
June 6th agenda 
 

b. Eviction/Section 8/Foreclosure Committee (Commissioner Mendonca, Chair) 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Thursday, June 23rd at 5:30 p.m. 
 

c. Legislation, IRA/AGA & Registration Committee (LIRA Committee) 
(Commissioner Kelley, Chair)  
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  TBA 
 

d. Outreach Committee (Commissioner Laverde, Chair) 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Wednesday, June 15th at 5:15 p.m. 



   
June 16, 2022 Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board Meeting minutes 
Page 8 
 

 

 
June 15th agenda  
 

e. 2 x 2 Committee on Housing: Rent Board/Berkeley Unified School District (Chair 
TBA) 
Regularly-scheduled meeting date:  TBA 
 

f. 4 x 4 Joint Task Force Committee on Housing: City Council/Rent Board 
(Mayor Arreguín and Chair Simon-Weisberg, Committee Co-Chairs) 
Next regularly-scheduled meeting:  Monday, June 22nd at 3:00 p.m. 
 

g. Ad Hoc Committee on Rent Board Technology Issues (Commissioner Selawsky, 
Chair) 
Next meeting date:  TBA 
 
June 6th agenda 
 

h. Ad Hoc Committee on the Status of Virtual Meetings (Chair TBA) 
Next meeting date:  TBA 
 

i. Updates and Announcements 
 

j. Discussion of items for possible placement on future agenda 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION: Public Employee Evaluation of Performance pursuant to 
California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1). 
 
Title: Executive Director 
 
The Chair announced the Board would be convening in closed session pursuant to 
California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) to discuss public employee evaluation 
and performance for the Executive Director. 
 
Upon return to open session, the Chair announced the Board took no reportable action 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
M/S/C (Kelley/Johnson) ADJOURN THE MEETING. Roll call vote.  YES: Chang, 
Johnson, Kelley, Laverde, Mendonca, Walker, Selawsky, Simon-Weisberg; NO: None; 
ABSTAIN: None; ABSENT: Alpert.  Carried: 8-0-0-1. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:04 a.m. 









   
Waiver Recommendations 
July 21, 2022 
Page 4 
 

 
2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, California 94704 

TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT) • TDD: (510) 981-6903 • FAX: (510) 981-4940 
E-MAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info   • INTERNET:  www.cityofberkeley.info/rent 

 
 

W5034 1240 ORDWAY MARIO ANICAMA 300.00 300.00  
W5035 1203 SHATTUCK #B LINDA KOHN 500.00 500.00  
W5036 1655 BELVEDERE THE ALLADIN TRUST 500.00 500.00  
W5037 1204 EVELYN AVE PAULINE WALLACE 500.00 500.00  
W5038 2383 VIRGINIA ST DAVID KORMAN 1,428.00 1,428.00  
W5039 2204 MCGEE ASSU ZVIK 1,000.00 1,000.00  

W5040 2644 DWIGHT SQUARE ONE 
MANAGEMENT 462.00 462.00  

W5041 1612 PARKER FERY SHALILEH 3,500.00  3,500.00 
W5042 1636 MLK JR WAY JUDY HAN 2,750.00 2,750.00  
W5043 1780 SPRUCE JUDY HAN 5,000.00 5,000.00  

W5044 2501 HILGARD SNOW WHITE 
PROPERTIES 2,000.00  2,000.00 

W5045 2733, 2727 & 2729 
STUART ILIANA MONTUAK 750.00 750.00  

W5046 1602 ASHBY LEONG MING 1,500.00 1,500.00  
W5047 1449 CEDAR RITA SHUSTER 300.00 300.00  
W5048 1350 ACTON GEORGE HONGELL 500.00 500.00  

      
            

TOTAL     $26,210 $17,000  $9,210  
 
 
Financial Impact: Discretionary Waivers  
 
Approval of Executive Director’s recommendations will decrease the Board’s current accounts 
receivable by $17,000. 
 

Name and Telephone Number of Contact Person: 

 
DeSeana Williams, Executive Director 
Rent Stabilization Board 
2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA  94704 
(510) 981-7368 
 















Waiver No:W5033 Property address: 2721 CHANNING WAY Transfered: 03/01/1979

# of Units: 18

Exempt units (as of February 2021):

Unit # 11 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 9 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 2A - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 4 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 1B - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 13 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 15 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 12 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 6 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 8 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 10 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 3 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 14 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 7 - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # A - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 1A - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # B - SUMMER - Tenant,
Unit # 5 - SUMMER - Tenant

Owner(s): undefined ABRACADABRA Waiver filed by: PROPERTY MANAGER

Other Berkeley rental property owned: None

     City Of Berkeley
Rent Stabilization Board

Late payment/penalty history: In the last 5 fiscal years, the property owner has not paid registration fees late.

Registration
Date or Year

Units requiring
registration at that
time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Paid

- - - - - - -

Totals (penalties previously assessed)

Reason for Penalties: Soft Story

Penalties Currently Under Consideration

Registration
Date or Year

Unit(s) registered
late at this time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Due

FY2021-22 18 $1,260.00 03/04/2022 $2,160.00 $0.00 $2,160.00

Totals

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$2,160.00 $0.00 $2,160.00

Recommendation on Requested Waiver of Registration Penalties

                         2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, California 94704
 TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT), TDD: (510) 981-6903, FAX: (510) 981-4910
E-MAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info, INTERNET: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent/



Grounds under Regulation 884(B):   (12) The property is on the inventory of potentially hazardous soft story buildings, as
defined in the Soft Story Ordinance (Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 19.39), but the landlord is not in compliance with that
ordinance.  For the purposes of this Regulation, compliance with the Soft Story Ordinance means that the landlord has
notified tenants and posted a notice as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.060, and submitted an Initial Screening and
seismic engineering evaluation report as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.070, by the applicable deadline under B.M.C.
section 19.39.090

Good cause claimed by owner:   In June 2021 their Board had a lot of turnover. During the transition, the registration
billing statement was lost.

Recommendation:     Staff recommends waiving 50% of the penalties

Staff Analysis:   This property is a non profit Fraternity, that has rented units consistently since 1989. In June 2021 the
property manager notes that there was a lot of Board turnover and unfortunately the registration statement was lost during
that transition. The new property management team made no attempts to reach out to RSB staff to be sent a new statement
until penalty notices were sent in March 2022.

                         2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, California 94704
 TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT), TDD: (510) 981-6903, FAX: (510) 981-4910
E-MAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info, INTERNET: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent/





Waiver No:W5034 Property address: 1240 ORDWAY ST Transfered: 01/01/1900

# of Units: 1

Exempt units (as of February 2021):

None

Owner(s): MARIO ANICAMA Waiver filed by: OWNER

Other Berkeley rental property owned: 1240 ORDWAY ST BERKELEY CA 94706

     City Of Berkeley
Rent Stabilization Board

Late payment/penalty history: In the last 5 fiscal years, this property owner has not paid registration fees late.

Registration
Date or Year

Units requiring
registration at that
time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Paid

- - - - - - -

Totals (penalties previously assessed)

Reason for Penalties: Illness

Penalties Currently Under Consideration

Registration
Date or Year

Unit(s) registered
late at this time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Due

FY2021-22 1 $150.00 02/17/2022 $300.00 $0.00 $300.00

Totals

Grounds under Regulation 884(B):   (1) The good cause asserted in the waiver request is a death or illness in the
landlord’s family.

Good cause claimed by owner:   The property owner was undergoing cancer treatment.

Recommendation:     Staff recommends waiving the penalties.

Staff Analysis:   Property owner was undergoing cancer treatment and had a number of significant health issues during the
21/22 registration season.

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$300.00 $0.00 $300.00

Recommendation on Requested Waiver of Registration Penalties

                         2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, California 94704
 TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT), TDD: (510) 981-6903, FAX: (510) 981-4910
E-MAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info, INTERNET: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent/











Waiver No:W5035 Property address: 1203 SHATTUCK AVE Transfered: 01/01/1979

# of Units: 2

Exempt units (as of February 2021):

Unit # 1203 SHATTUCK AVE BERKELEY CA 94709 - OOCC - Owner

Owner(s): LINDA KOHN Waiver filed by: OWNER

Other Berkeley rental property owned: None

     City Of Berkeley
Rent Stabilization Board

Late payment/penalty history: In fiscal year 19/20, this property owner paid the registration fee late and also received a
100% penalty waiver for this fiscal year.

Registration
Date or Year

Units requiring
registration at that
time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Paid

- - - - - - -

Totals (penalties previously assessed)

Reason for Penalties: Illness

Penalties Currently Under Consideration

Registration
Date or Year

Unit(s) registered
late at this time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Due

FY2021-22 2 $250.00 03/14/2022 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00

Totals

Grounds under Regulation 884(B):   (12) The property is on the inventory of potentially hazardous soft story buildings, as
defined in the Soft Story Ordinance (Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 19.39), but the landlord is not in compliance with that
ordinance.  For the purposes of this Regulation, compliance with the Soft Story Ordinance means that the landlord has
notified tenants and posted a notice as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.060, and submitted an Initial Screening and
seismic engineering evaluation report as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.070, by the applicable deadline under B.M.C.
section 19.39.090

Good cause claimed by owner:   Property owner has two illness during the 21/22 registration season.

Recommendation:     Staff recommends waiving the penalty fees.

Staff Analysis:   Property owner paid the FY 19/20 registration fees late and also received a 100% administrative waiver for
FY 19/20. During the 21/22 registration season, the property owner is claiming illness unfortunately, no supporting
documentation was provided to RSB staff. Staff recommends waiving 100% of the penalty fee.

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$500.00 $0.00 $500.00

Recommendation on Requested Waiver of Registration Penalties

                         2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, California 94704
 TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT), TDD: (510) 981-6903, FAX: (510) 981-4910
E-MAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info, INTERNET: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent/





Waiver No:W5036 Property address: 1655 BELVEDERE AVE Transfered: 05/17/2018

# of Units: 2

Exempt units (as of February 2021):

Unit # NA - OOCC - Tenant

Owner(s): THE ALLADIN TRUST Waiver filed by: OWNER

Other Berkeley rental property owned: 1653 BELVEDERE AVE BERKELEY CA 94702

     City Of Berkeley
Rent Stabilization Board

Late payment/penalty history: In the last five fiscal years, this property owner has not paid the registration fee late.

Registration
Date or Year

Units requiring
registration at that
time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Paid

- - - - - - -

Totals (penalties previously assessed)

Reason for Penalties: Soft Story

Penalties Currently Under Consideration

Registration
Date or Year

Unit(s) registered
late at this time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Due

FY2021-22 2 $25.00 02/24/2022 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00

Totals

Grounds under Regulation 884(B):   (12) The property is on the inventory of potentially hazardous soft story buildings, as
defined in the Soft Story Ordinance (Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 19.39), but the landlord is not in compliance with that
ordinance.  For the purposes of this Regulation, compliance with the Soft Story Ordinance means that the landlord has
notified tenants and posted a notice as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.060, and submitted an Initial Screening and
seismic engineering evaluation report as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.070, by the applicable deadline under B.M.C.
section 19.39.090

Good cause claimed by owner:   Property owner submitted a good faith payment in June 2021. Unfortunately, the check
was returned for insufficient funds.

Recommendation:     Staff recommends waiving the penalty fees.

Staff Analysis:   In the last five fiscal years, this property owner has not paid the registration fee late. For the FY 21/22
Registration season, the property owner sent a good faith payment in June 2021. Unfortunately, the check was returned for
insufficient funds. When the penalty notices were sent in February 2022, the owner paid the outstanding fee, and the
insufficient funds fee.

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$500.00 $0.00 $500.00

Recommendation on Requested Waiver of Registration Penalties

                         2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, California 94704
 TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT), TDD: (510) 981-6903, FAX: (510) 981-4910
E-MAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info, INTERNET: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent/





Waiver No:W5037 Property address: 1204 EVELYN AVE Transfered: 04/09/2014

# of Units: 2

Exempt units (as of February 2021):

Unit # NA - OOCC - Owner

Owner(s): PAULINE WALLACE Waiver filed by: OWNER

Other Berkeley rental property owned: None

     City Of Berkeley
Rent Stabilization Board

Late payment/penalty history: Property owner paid the FY 19/20 registration fees late and also received a 100%
administrative waiver for FY 19/20.

Registration
Date or Year

Units requiring
registration at that
time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Paid

- - - - - - -

Totals (penalties previously assessed)

Reason for Penalties: Soft Story

Penalties Currently Under Consideration

Registration
Date or Year

Unit(s) registered
late at this time

Registration
fees paid

Date fees
paid

Penalties
charged

Penalties
forgiven

Penalties
Due

FY2021-22 2 $250.00 03/21/2022 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00

Totals

Grounds under Regulation 884(B):   (12) The property is on the inventory of potentially hazardous soft story buildings, as
defined in the Soft Story Ordinance (Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 19.39), but the landlord is not in compliance with that
ordinance.  For the purposes of this Regulation, compliance with the Soft Story Ordinance means that the landlord has
notified tenants and posted a notice as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.060, and submitted an Initial Screening and
seismic engineering evaluation report as required by B.M.C. section 19.39.070, by the applicable deadline under B.M.C.
section 19.39.090

Good cause claimed by owner:   During the FY 21/22 Registration season, this property owner experienced a number of
hardships.

Recommendation:     Staff recommends waiving the penalties.

Staff Analysis:   This property owner paid the FY 19/20 registration fees late and also received a 100% administrative
waiver for FY 19/20. During the 21/22 registration season, the property owner had a number of hardships that ranged from
loss of hours due to COVID to death of family members.

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$500.00 $0.00 $500.00

Recommendation on Requested Waiver of Registration Penalties

                         2125 Milvia Street, Berkeley, California 94704
 TEL: (510) 981-7368 (981-RENT), TDD: (510) 981-6903, FAX: (510) 981-4910
E-MAIL: rent@cityofberkeley.info, INTERNET: www.cityofberkeley.info/rent/




















































	ITEM_8B_CONSENT_Request for Waiver of Late Registration Penalties.pdf
	W5031
	W5032
	W5033
	W5034
	W5035
	W5036
	W5037
	W5038
	W5039
	W5040
	W5041
	W5042
	W5043
	W5044
	W5045
	W5046
	W5047
	W5048




